
 
 

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, April 19, 2021 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

* COVID-19 NOTICE * 
 

How to observe the Meeting:  
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum & Frontier Channel 3. 
 
How to submit Public Comment:  
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 
 
Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 

 
This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute) 

 
C. PRESENTATION 

 
1. Government Finance Officers Association – Certificate of Achievement for  

Excellence in Financial Reporting 
 

D. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 

E. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 
 

F. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
 

G. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
https://www.lawndalecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server_16676053/File/Government/Departments/City%20Clerk's%20Office/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
https://www.lawndalecity.org/cms/one.aspx?pageId=17106541


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
April 19, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Items 2 through 7, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember 
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation. 

 
2. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the  

Agenda 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.   

 
3. Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission (PRSSC) Fireworks Stand  

Location 
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file this report announcing the 
location of the 2021 PRSSC Fireworks Fundraising Program as the Lawndale Performing 
Arts Center Parking Lot located on the campus of Lawndale High School at 14901 S. 
Inglewood Ave. 

 
4. Contract Services Agreement for Cable Television Consultation and Technical  

Support Services 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve an authorize the City Manager to 
execute the attached contract services agreement with Darren P. Doerschel, Systems 
Integration Consultant, for cable television consulting and technical support services for 
an amount not to exceed $34,200, in a form approved by the City Attorney; and (b) direct 
the Director of Finance/City Treasurer to transfer budget salary savings in the General 
Fund Cable Television budget to contract services in the same budget. 

 
5. Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter ended March 31, 2021 

Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the Quarterly Investment Report 
for the quarter ended March 31, 2021. 

 
6. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2104-018, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $1,606,458.21. 

 
7. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – April 5, 2021 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

H. ADMINISTRATION 
 

8. South Bay Workforce Investment Board (SBWIB) Appointment to the Lawndale  
Business Private Sector Seat 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) review the submitted information from Mr. 
Roderick D. Edison, as supported by the SBWIB; (b) re-affirm the SBWIB 's nomination 
of Mr. Roderick D. Edison as the City of Lawndale' s SBWIB representative on the 
Business Private Sector seat, filling the remaining term from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 
2024, and direct staff to provide that name to the SBWIB for the Inglewood Chamber of 
Commerce's final approval; or (c) Direct staff to open up nominations for additional 
applications including advertising the opening on the City's website and social media 
platforms; and (d) bring the nomination applications to an upcoming City Council 
meeting and provide direction to staff to provide a name to the SBWIB for the Inglewood 
Chamber of Commerce's final approval, to fill the upcoming vacancy on the City of 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
April 19, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

 

Lawndale's SBWIB Business Private Sector seat, filling the remaining term of July 1, 
2020 to June 30, 2024. 

 
9. Award of Citywide Information Technology Services Contract 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve the Contract Services Agreement for 
Information Technology Services with Bericom IT & Design for a three year period 
beginning July 1, 2021, renewable for an additional (2) one-year periods, for an annual 
amount not to exceed $142,800, including annual Consumer Price Index Increases in 
years 2 through 5 of the contract and subject to annual budget availability. 

 
10. Amendment to Section 8.12.120 of Chapter 8.12 of the Lawndale Municipal Code  

Pertaining to Illegal Fireworks Violations (1st Reading) 
Recommendation: that the City Council introduce and approve the first reading of 
Ordinance No. 1180-2, amending Section 8.12.120 of Chapter 8.12 of the Lawndale 
Municipal Code pertaining to illegal fireworks violations 
 

I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

11. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
May 3, 2021 in the Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 

 
It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on April 19, 2021 was posted not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

City of Lawndale
California

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2019

Executive Director/CEO

1



9/24/2020

Marla Pendleton
Director of Finance / Treasurer
City of Lawndale, California

Dear Ms. Pendleton:

Congratulations!

We are pleased to notify you that your CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 has met the requirements to be 
awarded GFOA's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The GFOA established the 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program (CAFR Program) in 1945 to encourage 
and assist state and local governments to go beyond the minimum requirements of generally accepted accounting 
principles to prepare comprehensive annual financial reports that evidence the spirit of transparency and full 
disclosure and then to recognize individual governments that succeed in achieving that goal. The Certificate of 
Achievement is the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and financial reporting. 
Congratulations, again, for having satisfied the high standards of the program.

Your electronic award packet contains the following:

 A "Summary of Grading" form and a confidential list of comments and suggestions for possible 
improvements. We strongly encourage you to implement the recommended improvements in your next 
report. Certificate of Achievement Program policy requires that written responses to these comments and 
suggestions for improvement be included with your 2020 fiscal year end submission. If a comment is 
unclear or there appears to be a discrepancy, please contact the Technical Services Center at (312) 977-
9700 and ask to speak with a Certificate of Achievement Program in-house reviewer.

 Certificate of Achievement. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. A current 
holder of a Certificate of Achievement may reproduce the Certificate in its immediately subsequent CAFR. 
Please refer to the instructions for reproducing your Certificate in your next report. 

 Award of Financial Reporting Achievement. When GFOA awards a government the Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, we also present an Award of Financial Reporting 
Achievement (AFRA) to the department identified in the application as primarily responsible for 
achievement of the Certificate.

 Sample press release. Attaining this award is a significant accomplishment. Attached is a sample news 
release that you may use to give appropriate publicity to this notable achievement. 

In addition, award recipients will receive via mail either a plaque (if first-time recipients or if the government has 
received the Certificate ten times since it received its last plaque) or a brass medallion to affix to the plaque (if the 
government currently has a plaque with space to affix the medallion). If receiving a plaque, it should arrive in 
approximately ten weeks; if receiving a medallion, it should arrive in approximately two weeks.

As an award-winning government, we would like to invite one or more appropriate members of your CAFR team to 
apply to join the Special Review Committee. As members of the Special Review Committee, peer reviewers get 
exposure to a variety of reports from around the country; gain insight into how to improve their own comprehensive 
annual financial reports; achieve professional recognition; and provide valuable input that helps other local 



governments improve their reports. Please see our website for eligibility requirements and information on 
completing an application.

Thank you for participating in and supporting the Certificate of Achievement Program. If we may be of any further 
assistance, please contact the Technical Services Center at (312) 977-9700.

Sincerely,

Michele Mark Levine
Director, Technical Services

https://www.gfoa.org/CAFR-reviewer-eligibility
https://gfoa.org/certificate-achievement-excellence-financial-reporting-program-special-review-committee-applicatio-0
https://gfoa.org/certificate-achievement-excellence-financial-reporting-program-special-review-committee-applicatio-0


2



3





4































5









6











MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

    April 5, 2021 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber,
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Bernadette Suarez, Councilmember Rhonda 
Hofmann-Gorman, Councilmember Sirley Cuevas   

Other Participants: City Clerk Erica Harbison, City Manager Kevin M. Chun, City 
Attorney Gregory M. Murphy, Los Angeles County Sheriff's 
Department Captain Duane Allen, Community Services Director 
Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human Resources 
Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director Michael 
Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew 
Ceballos, Public Works Director Julian Lee 

B. CEREMONIALS

Councilmember Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman led the flag salute.

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

Captain Duane Allen summarized the recent law enforcement activities.

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

• Judith Martinez, Resident, spoke of food waste ending in landfills and encouraged
composting or a food waste drop-off location in Lawndale.

• Randall Abram, Resident, spoke of the noise ordinance during the 4th of July holiday and
additional enforcement costs to be covered by the fireworks booths and manufacturers.

E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

The City Council and staff responded generally to the comments, but did not request placement
of any issues on a future meeting agenda.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. National DMV/ Donate Life Month Proclamation
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file report.

2. Dispose of and Purchase Two Vehicles for Public Works Department
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the purchase of two replacement
vehicles, utilizing Air Quality Management District (AQMD) funding, from the National

7



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
April 5, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

Auto Fleet Group for the total price of $52,897.54; (b) decrease the AQMD budget by 
$90,000; and (c) approve the sale of the 2005 Chevrolet and 2008 Honda through our 
standard public auction process facilitated by Ken Porter Auctions in Carson, California.  

 
3. Annual Review and Updates to the Citywide Records Retention Schedules for Fiscal  

Year 20-21 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2104-016, Updating 
City Council Policy No. 77-04 (Records and Information Management), Annual Review 
and Schedule Updates for FY 2020-21. 

 
4. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2104-015, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $266,319.84. 

 
5. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – March 15, 2021 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Cuevas and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 

G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
6. Adopting Updated User and Regulatory Fees (Master Fee Schedule) 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) conduct a public hearing and (b) adopt the 
proposed Resolution No. CC-2104-017, with updated fees to be effective July 1, 2021. 
 

Finance Director Marla Pendleton and Terry Madison, president of ClearSource Financial 
Consulting, provided a detailed report on the Updated User and Regulatory Fees (Master Fee 
Schedule). 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles opened and closed the public hearing at 7:12 p.m., there being no one to 
testify. 
 
A dialogue ensued between City Council and staff regarding the City fees and cost recovery. 
 
City Council discussed and requested, without objection, to modify the snack bar fee per season 
for non-profit organizations and per day fee for non-qualifying users or organizations.  
 
A motion by Councilmember Suarez adopt the Resolution No. CC-2104-017, with updated 
fees to be effective July 1, 2021, including the amendment to the snack bar fee to be charged 
per season for non-profit organizations and per day fee for non-qualifying users or 
organization, was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

 
H. ADMINISTRATION 

 
7. Updated Illegal Fireworks Suppression Plan for 2021 

Recommendation: that the City Council review and approve the proposed Illegal 
Fireworks Suppression Plan for 2021. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
April 5, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 
 

Municipal Services Director Michael Reyes provided a report on the updated Illegal Fireworks 
Suppression Plan for 2021. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Kearney inquired on the status of the JAG grant, Municipal Services Director 
Reyes responded that grant was approved but has not been awarded and he’s followed up with 
Washington D.C. 
 
A lengthy dialogue ensued between the Council and staff regarding the “Progressive Penalty”, 
revisiting the penalty form time to time for offenses, compliance, and enforcement protocols. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Randall Abram, Resident, spoke in favor of the Fireworks Suppression Plan for 2021.   
 
A motion by Councilmember Cuevas to approve the proposed Illegal Fireworks 
Suppression Plan for 2021, was seconded by Councilmember Hofmann-Gorman and 
carried by a vote of 5-0. 

 
I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

City Manager Kevin Chun announced that the City was working with Providence Little Company 
of Mary on a COVID-19 vaccination clinic, a tentative date of Friday, April 16, 2021 had been 
set. 
 

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 
1. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 
Councilmember Suarez attended the grand opening of Hirsh Pipe and Supply, the South Bay 
Cities Council of Government’s General Assembly, the L.A. County Sherriff’s Town Hall 
meeting. 
 
Councilmember Cuevas attended the South Bay Cities Council of Government’s General 
Assembly, the Lawndale General Plan and Hawthorne Specific Plan meeting, the L.A. County 
Sheriff’s Town Hall meeting, Parks Subcommittee, “Stop Asian Hate” rally, “Women in 
Government” webinar. 
 
Councilmember Hofmann-Gorman attended the California Contract Cities virtual meeting, the 
Lawndale General Plan and Hawthorne Specific Plan meeting, the L.A. County Sheriff’s Town 
Hall meeting, and a meeting with L.A. County Supervisor Holly Mitchell. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kearney attended L.A. County Sanitation District meeting, the California 
Contract Cities virtual meeting, he grand opening of Hirsh Pipe and Supply, and the Parks 
Subcommittee. 
 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
April 5, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Kearney requested follow-up or agenized items on Project Room-Key and the 
potential motel buy-outs by the State, the reopening of City Hall, and bringing back a weekend 
graffiti team. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles spoke about rent relief programs and attended the L.A. County Sheriff’s 
Town Hall meeting, meeting with Congresswoman Maxine Waters regarding project funding, 
and the South Bay Cities Council of Government’s General Assembly.  The Mayor briefly spoke 
about measure H funding and how it is spent on homeless issues in Lawndale.  The Mayor went 
on to explain that he also attended a meeting with L.A. County Supervisor Holly Mitchell. 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:53 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 04/19/2021 

 



8



City Council Meeting - April 19, 2021 
South Bay Workforce Investment Board Appointment to the Lawndale Business Private Sector Seat 

STAFF REVIEW 

The SBWIB has informed the City of Lawndale of a vacancy that will need to be filled due to the 
resignation of Mr. Frank Rodriguez prior to the end of his term. 

The SBWIB has submitted a name for consideration, and supports the nomination of Mr. Roderick D. 
Edison from Max Out Inc., a general engineering contractor in the City of Lawndale. The Business 
Private Sector seat that was vacated early was for a term from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2024. The City 
ofLawndale's appointee would fill the remaining time on this term, once the approval process with the 
SBWIB is completed. 

The City of Lawndale's support of an applicant will be forwarded to the Inglewood Chamber of 
Commerce (via the SBWIB) for final approval within the SBWIB jurisdiction. 

LEGAL REVIEW 

None. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

None. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 

(a) Review the submitted information from Mr. Roderick D. Edison, as supported by the SBWIB; 

(b) Re-affirm the SBWIB 's nomination of Mr. Roderick D. Edison as the City of Lawndale' s SBWIB 
representative on the Business Private Sector seat, filling the remaining time on the term (vacated 
by Mr. Frank Rodriguez on February 12, 2021) from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2024, and direct 
staff to provide that name to the SBWIB for the Inglewood Chamber of Commerce's final 
approval; or Options ( c) and ( d) below: 

( c) Direct staff to open up nominations for additional applications including advertising the opening 
on the City's website and social media platforms; and, 

( d) Bring the nomination applications to an upcoming City Council meeting and provide direction 
to staff to provide a name to the SBWIB for the Inglewood Chamber of Commerce's final 
approval, to fill the upcoming vacancy on the City ofLawndale's SBWIB Business Private Sector 
seat, filling the remaining time on the term of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2024. 

Attachments: 
1. Email from the SBWIB regarding the available position 
2. Bio information from Mr. Roderick D. Edison 
3. SBWIB 2021 Board and Committee Meeting Schedules 

Page 2 of2 

















9



















































 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Lawndale 
 

Request for Proposals 
For 

Citywide Information Technology Services  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     City of Lawndale   
     14717 Burin Avenue 
     Lawndale, CA  90260 
     Phone: (310) 973-3241     Date of Issuance:     February 25, 2021 
     Fax: (310) 970-2183     Proposal Deadline:  March 25, 2021 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 2 

 City of Lawndale 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
I. INTRODUCTION 
 

A. The City of Lawndale 
B. Purpose of Request for Proposal 
C. Contract Person 
D. Proposal Submittal 
E. Additional Information 
F. Liability 
G. Bid Submittal Deadline 
H. Rejection of Submittals 
I. Interviews 
J. Selection and Approval 

 
II. WORK PERFORMANCE 
   

A. General Requirements 
B. Scope of Services 
C. Work Area and Equipment 

 
III. REQUIREMENTS 
 

  IV. AGREEMENT AND TERMS 
 

A. Agreement Requirement 
B. Term of Agreement 
C. City Taxation 
D. Fee Payment Schedule 
E. Agreement Termination 

 
V. PROPOSAL FORMAT 
 

A. Submission of Proposals 
B. Number of Copies 
C. Proposal Form Information 
D. Company Profile 
E. Staffing Personnel 
F. Proposal Submittal 

 
APPENDICES 

 
Proposal Form 
City of Lawndale’s Standard Professional Services Contract  



 

 
 
 3 

City of Lawndale 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 
 
I. INTRODUCTION 
 
 A. The City of Lawndale 
 
  The City of Lawndale is located in the South Bay region of the Greater Los Angeles 

County, approximately 15 miles southwest of downtown Los Angeles and five miles 
east of the Pacific Ocean.  The City’s population is approximately 34,000 residents. 

 
  The City has 53 full-time employees, and part-time employees working at four 

locations within the city that require support.  In addition, we have five 
councilmembers and five planning commissioners that require remote assistance 
and direct assistance when public meetings are hosted in City Hall.  Also, the City 
Hall customer kiosk and Community Services computer lab require support, as 
needed.  Below is a breakdown of the City information systems: 

 
System Quantity Make Operating System 

Desktop 64 HP/ Lenovo Windows 10 
Notebook Computers 11 Lenovo Windows 10 
Com Srvs Computer Lab 18 HP/ Lenovo Windows 7 
Tablets 4 Apple OSx 
City Servers (Exchange, 
Application (2), & Data) 

3 Lenovo Windows 12 R2 

Surveillance Cameras/ DVR/ 
NVR  

7 Various  

Network Firewall 1 Cisco  
Network Switches 6 Netgear/ Cisco  

 
 
 B. Purpose of the Request for Proposal 
 
  The City of Lawndale is soliciting Information Technology support services from a 

qualified firm/contractor.  The qualified firm will maintain and improve information 
technology (IT) effectiveness, enhance its quality of services, minimize down time 
and support costs, ensure security of data, and maximize return on investment in IT. 
 The City does not have internal IT staff.  The contractor will perform this function, 
as the main point of contact for the general city infrastructure, equipment, security, 
monitoring, and accessing employee needs related to hardware, software, backup, 
security and other IT requirements as deemed necessary.    

  
 
 
 



 

 
 
 4 

I. INTRODUCTION (Continued) 
 
 C. Contact Person 
 
  All inquiries, correspondence and other contact with the City of Lawndale shall be 

directed to: 
 
   Marla L. Pendleton, CPA, Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
   City of Lawndale 
   14717 Burin Avenue 
   Lawndale, CA 90260 
   (310) 973-3241 

 mpendleton@lawndalecity.org 
 

 D. Proposal Submittal 
 
To be considered, applicants must complete the Proposal Form included in the 
Request for Proposals.  No substitutes to the form will be accepted.  Any additional 
information, beyond that required on the form, which the applicant may wish to 
provide may be included as an attachment with the Proposal Form. 
 
All submittals must be signed by an official who is authorized to bind the contractor 
to the terms and provisions of the submittal.  All submittals, associated costs and 
agreements shall remain valid for a period of sixty (60) days following the deadline 
for submittals.  All submittals become the property of the City upon receipt.   
 

  There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Lawndale to reimburse 
responding firms for any expenses incurred in preparing proposals in response to 
this request. 
 

 E. Pre-Proposal Questions/Requests for Additional Information 
 
All questions regarding information provided in this Request for Proposal shall be 
directed to the contact person indicated in Section I (C).  Questions should be 
limited to clarifying points in the Proposal, which may not be understood.  
 

 F. Liability 
 
The selected firm shall be required, as part of the written contract of engagement to 
be entered into as a result of this Request for Proposal, to indemnify and hold 
harmless the City of Lawndale and its officers and employees from any actions 
and/or judgments against the City which results from the firm’s errors, omissions or 
misrepresentations. 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 5 

I. INTRODUCTION (Continued) 
  
G. Bid Submittal Deadline 
  
  To be considered, two (2) hard copies of the proposal with original signature, as 

well as one (1) electronic copy in PDF format saved on USB flash drive must be 
delivered in person, by US Postal Service, or by courier service, such as Federal 
Express or UPS, and received no later than Thursday, March 25, 2021, 2:00 pm 
PST, at the address listed below:   

 
   City of Lawndale 

Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 
14717 Burin Avenue 
Lawndale, California 90260  
 

In addition, the envelopes must be clearly labeled on the cover:  “INFORMATION 
TECHNOLGY SUPPORT SERVICES PROPOSAL.” 
 
Verbal, emailed or facsimile proposals received after the deadline date will not be 
accepted.  All proposals received after the stated time will be rejected.  Postmarks 
will not be accepted as meeting the submittal deadline.  The City assumes no 
responsibility for errors or delays by private or governmental firms in delivering 
proposals. 

  
  The City of Lawndale reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and to use 

any ideas in a proposal regardless of whether that proposal is selected.  Submission 
of a proposal indicates acceptance by the firm of the conditions contained in this 
request for proposals, unless clearly and specifically noted in the proposal submitted 
and confirmed in the contract between the City of Lawndale and the firm selected. 
 

 H. Rejection of Submittals 
 

  The City of Lawndale will generally notify rejected applicants within sixty (60) days 
of the proposal deadline.  
 

 I. Interviews 
  
During the evaluation process, the City of Lawndale reserves the right, where it may 
serve the City’s best interest, to request additional information or clarification from 
proposers, or to allow corrections of errors or omissions.  At the City’s discretion, 
the personnel of contractor’s submitting proposals may be requested to make oral 
presentations as part of the evaluation process. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 6 

I. INTRODUCTION (Continued) 
 

 J. Selection and Approval 
 
  The City of Lawndale Director of Finance/City Treasurer shall, in her sole and 

unfettered discretion, through the City Manager, shall recommend to the City 
Council the firm to be selected to administer the Information Systems at the City of 
Lawndale.  The selection criteria to be utilized will include, but not be limited to the 
following: 

 
1. Experience, educational background, demonstrated capability, and 

availability of qualified full-time key technical and management personnel 
who will be assigned to provide service. 

 
2. Familiarity and experience in providing governmental agencies with 

information technology support services. 
 
3. Compatibility with end users and City staff needs. 

 
4. Satisfaction of clients/ end users 

 
5. Cost. 

 
 

II. WORK PERFORMANCE 
 
 A. General Requirements 
 

The contractor selected to perform, provide and conduct services shall be required to 
complete the City’s standard professional services contract (attached). Any 
exceptions to this standard practice shall be expressed in the proposal. 

 
The RFP schedule is tentatively set as follows:   

 
  Request for proposal issued    February 25, 2021 
  Bidders’ Conference *    March 11, 2021 
  Due date for proposals    March 25, 2021 
  Selected firm notified     May 25, 2021 
    
  *  If necessary 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 7 

 II. WORK PERFORMANCE (Continued) 
 

B. Scope of Services 
 

  The City of Lawndale fully outsources the IT function. The following details are 
the minimum services to be provided to the City in the area of information 
services: 

 
1. Desktop Applications Support 

Perform basic support functions including installation of computers, 
tablets and telephone setup, printers and software installation, and 
upgrades.  Diagnose and resolve desktop application problems; 
configure computers, tablets, and cell phones for standard applications. 
 Identify and resolve hardware problems performing advance 
troubleshooting.  Provide computer support on applications as deemed 
appropriate by the Director of Finance.  Make recommendations and 
obtain bids for computer hardware, software, and supply purchases, 
and other related services as needed.  Work closely with any third party 
hardware/software vendor in regards to technical support and warranty 
issues. 

 
2. Server Administration Services 

Manage City’s computer network infrastructure and associated hardware, 
software, communications, and operating system necessary for the 
quality, security, performance, availability, recoverability, and reliability 
of the system. Ensure scheduled preventive maintenance and back up for 
equipment is promptly performed; develop back-up and disaster recovery 
plans and procedural documentation for archive backup. 

 
 Confidentiality of the information is vital. The selected contractor, and any 

employees assigned to work at the City, will be required to sign and adhere 
to a confidentiality clause that information in the system must remain 
confidential under penalty of law. All vendor employees with access to the 
City network will be required to undergo a fingerprint background check at 
the contractor’s expense. 

 
3. Network Administration Services 
 Scope of activity includes all City network equipment including 

switches, firewalls, routers, hubs, cabling, data circuits, collaboration 
with phone system vendor, and other security devices.  Manage backup 
and disaster recovery systems. The scope also includes primary 
installation and maintenance of printers, network copiers/ scanners, 
group policy, software updates, etc., as deem necessary. Monitor 
network performance and capacity management services. Maintain city- 
wide network diagram. 

 



 

 
 
 8 

 II. WORK PERFORMANCE (Continued) 
 

 
4. Security 

Maintenance of virus/ malware detection and spam reduction programs on 
City servers, email and all other City computers, laptops, and tablets. 
Perform security audits as requested and notify City personnel immediately 
of suspected breaches of security. 
 

 Provide record back-up, maintain and retrieval of requested data from City 
surveillance systems. 

 
Maintain and issue security access key cards for employees to access City 
facilities. 

 
5. Strategic Planning 

Provide technical leadership for all technology issues. Work closely with 
City staff to develop long-term IT goals and objectives. Keep City up to date 
on new technology changes and uses that will enable the City to increase 
efficiency and reduce costs.  Provide support in evaluating computer 
applications and support City staff with the implementation of new IT 
projects and solutions as specified by the City.  Assist with policy 
formulation and application in the area of IT. 

 
6. End User Training 

Provide training for various technology as needed. This would normally 
be for common software or hardware used in a business setting or new 
equipment installed. This can be at the request of the City or when a 
need is identified by the vendor. 
 

7. Onsite Support 
Provide dedicated onsite routine support Monday – Thursday from 7:00 
a.m. to 4:00 p.m. to address city-wide and/or departmental hardware and 
software issues. Additional onsite support will be needed on City 
Council meeting dates (1st and 3rd Monday of each month) and may be 
needed for special or major projects. 

 
8. Help Desk Support 

End user support must be timely, friendly, and professional. Urgent and 
emergent support must be available 24/7/365.  
 

9. Computer Inventory and Disposal 
Vendor must provide biannual hardware inventory reporting, including 
proper and legal electronic disposal of surplus electronic equipment. 
 
 



 

 
 
 9 

 II. WORK PERFORMANCE (Continued) 
 

10. City Website 
Assist in the maintenance and updating of the City’s website through 
coordination with the website designer and City staff. 
 

11. Telephone System Support 
Provide first-line support for City telephone systems, serving as a liaison 
between City and telephone service provider, as needed to resolve 
technical matters. (Note:  The telephone equipment is currently being 
reviewed for system upgrade). 

 
 C. Work Area and Equipment 
 
  The City of Lawndale will provide the contractor with reasonable workspace, desks 

and chairs.  While at the City facilities, the contractor will also be provided with 
access to telephone lines, photocopying facilities and fax machines subject to the 
following restrictions: 

 
   Personal use 
   Other Client work within reason 
 
  Note:  City works a 4/40 work schedule Monday – Thursday 7:00 am – 6:00 pm. 
 
 
IV. AGREEMENT AND TERMS 
 
 A. Agreement Requirement 
 
  The contractor selected to perform contract Information Technology support 

services pursuant to this Request for Proposal shall be required to enter into a 
written agreement for services with the City of Lawndale.  This agreement shall be 
drafted on the City’s standard professional services contract (sample attached) and 
shall include the incorporation of the specific requirements stated in this Request for 
Proposals. Any concerns or requests for modifications to that standard template 
should be addressed in the proposal.  

 
 B. Term of Agreement 
 

The City anticipates a three-year contract beginning July 1, 2021, renewable for 
an additional (2) two one-year periods, subject to annual budget availability.  
Renewal of the contract will require City Manager authorization.  All fees 
should be set for an annual term and clearly stated in the proposal.  
 
 

 



 

 
 
 10 

IV. AGREEMENT AND TERMS (Continued) 
 
 C. City Taxation 
   
  The selected contractor will be required to obtain a City of Lawndale Business 

License. 
 

D. Fee Payment Schedule 
 
  The selected contractor shall submit monthly invoices to the City’s Finance 

Department for actual service provided prior to the invoice date and approved by the 
Director of Finance.  

 
 E. Agreement Termination 
 

The City shall reserve the right to terminate the agreement entered into with the 
selected contractor, with or without cause, after having provided thirty (30) days 
written notice to the contractor of such termination.  

 
V. PROPOSAL FORMAT 
 
 A. Submission of Proposals 
 
  All submittals must be signed by an official who is authorized to bind the contractor 

to the terms and provisions of the submittal.  All submittals, associated costs and 
agreements shall remain valid for a period of sixty (60) days following the deadline 
for submittals. Submittals become the property of the City of Lawndale upon 
receipt. 

 
 B. Number of Copies 
  
  Two (2) hard copies of the proposal with original signature, and one (1) electronic 

copy in PDF format saved on USB flash drive must be delivered in person, by US 
Postal Service, or by courier service, such as Federal Express or UPS, shall be 
provided to the City of Lawndale. 

 
 C. Proposal Form Information 
 

  The following information shall be included on the Proposal Form: 
 

1. Name of Firm/Contact Person. 
2.         List of three references from like-cities.  
3.         Name of official authorized to bind firm to terms of submittal. 
4.         Original signature of authorized official. 
5.         Date on which the submittal is executed by contractor. 
 



 

 
 
 11 

 
VI. PROPOSAL FORMAT (Continued) 

 
D. Company Profile 
 

  The Proposal shall include a profile of the contractor including: 
 

 1. Company overview and history. 
 2. Number of employees. 
 3. Location of Office(s). 
 4. Local government clients. 

 E. Staffing Personnel 
 

  Each proposal shall include the name(s) of key personnel assigned to perform the 
Citywide Information Technology services.  Background information on personnel 
experience and qualifications with information technology support services must be 
provided. 

 
 F. Proposal Submittal 
 

  To be considered, completed proposals must be submitted by 2:00 PM on 
Thursday, March 25, 2021 to the following address: 

   
  City of Lawndale 
  City Clerk 
  14717 Burin Avenue 

     Lawndale, California 90260  



10



City Council Meeting - April 19, 2021 
Ordinance No. 1180-21 Amending Section 8.12.120 of Chapter 8.12 of the Lawndale Municipal Code 
Pertaining to Illegal Fireworks Violations 

C. States a reasonable person in possession of 25 pounds of illegal fireworks or less shall be
subject to citation.

D. States that citations issued pursuant to these violations shall receive citations in the amount
of $1,000 for the first violation and $2,000 for the second and all subsequent violations within
a five year period of the most recently issued citation.

E. States that the responsible party cited shall be required to pay this amount, and surrender all
illegal fireworks to law enforcement officials.

LEGAL REVIEW 

The City Attorney has been consulted in the development of this plan and approves the implementation 
of these strategies. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

City staff does not expect any increased costs as a result of this new ordinance, and as it may increase 
the amount of revenue resulting from the issuance of Administrative Citations than in previous years, 
staff does expect to generate sufficient fine revenue to pay for related expenses. Staff fmiher 
acknowledges that while this new ordinance may create more revenue than in previous years, the goal 
of this ordinance is to prevent the use of illegal fireworks. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 
1180-21 amending Section 8.12.120 of Chapter 8.12 of the Lawndale Municipal Code pertaining to 
illegal fireworks violations. 

Page 2 of2 



 
 

 
Ordinance No. 1180-21 
Density Bonus Update Ordinance   1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1180-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 

8.12.120 OF CHAPTER 8.12 OF THE LAWNDALE 
MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO FIREWORK 

VIOLATIONS 
  

SUMMARY: This ordinance updates the penalty and enhances the enforcement of 
fireworks-related violations. 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Lawndale has received complaints and concerns with the use of 
illegal fireworks in the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, fireworks may lead to hazardous situations, injuries, personal property loss, 
and fires, which jeopardize the safety of the public and increase the cost of law enforcement and 
fire protection; and 
 
 WHEREAS, enhanced enforcement of fireworks-related violations of the Municipal Code 
will serve to abate the hazardous situations, injuries, personal property loss, and fires, which 
jeopardize the safety of the public by decreasing the amount of illegal fireworks usage in the City; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to amend Section 8.12.120 of the Lawndale Municipal Code 
to further discourage illegal fireworks use by enhancing the enforcement of fireworks-related 
violations. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE 
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1:  Section 8.12.120 of Chapter 8.12 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is amended in 
its entirety to read as follows: 
 
“8.12.120 Violation – Penalty. 
 
A. Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter or who knowingly or 

intentionally misrepresents to any officer or employee of the city any material fact in 
procuring the license or permit provided for in this chapter shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be punishable by a fine of not more than 
two thousand dollars or by imprisonment in the County Jail for a period of not more than 
six months, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Any person, who may otherwise be 
charged with a misdemeanor as a result of a violation of this chapter, may be charged, at 
the discretion of the prosecuting authority, with an infraction. 

 



 
 

 
Ordinance No. 1180-21 
Density Bonus Update Ordinance   2 
 

B. In addition to any other remedies set forth in this code, administrative penalties may be 
imposed against any responsible person for violating any of the requirements set forth in 
this chapter. Responsible person means a person who causes a code violation to occur, or 
allows a violation to exist or continue, by his or her action or failure to act, or whose agent, 
employee or independent contractor causes a violation to occur, or allows a violation to 
exist or continue. There is a rebuttable presumption that the record owner of a residential 
parcel, as shown on the County’s latest equalized property taxes assessment rolls, and a 
lessee of a residential parcel each has notice of any violation existing on said property. For 
purposes of this chapter, there may be more than one (1) responsible person for a violation. 
Any person, irrespective of age, found in violation of any provision of this chapter may be 
issued a citation in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. Every parent, guardian 
or other person, having the legal care, custody or control of any person under the age of 
eighteen (18) years, who knows or reasonably should know that a minor is in violation of 
this chapter, may be issued a citation in accordance with the provisions of this chapter, in 
addition to any citation that may be issued to the offending minor. 

 
C. Each responsible person who is found to possess, use, store, sell and/or display dangerous 

fireworks in the amount of twenty-five (25 lbs) pounds or less shall be subject to an 
administrative citation, as set forth herein. 

 
D. Citations issued pursuant to this chapter shall carry administrative fines in the following 

amounts: 
 
 1. $1,000.00 for the first violation; and  
 
 2. $2,000.00 for the second and subsequent violations within a five year period. 
 
E. Administrative fine(s) issued pursuant to this chapter shall be due and payable in 

accordance with Chapter 1.11, and the cited person shall be required to abate the violation, 
and surrender all dangerous fireworks to the police officer or code enforcement officer, 
immediately. For penalties not paid in full within that time, a late charge in the amount set 
by resolution of the city council may be imposed and must be paid to the City by the cited 
person.” 

 
SECTION 2:  The City Council declares that, should any provision, section, subsection, paragraph, 
sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Ordinance or any part thereof, be rendered or declared 
invalid or unconstitutional by any final court action in a court of competent jurisdiction or by 
reason of any preemptive legislation, such decision or action will not affect the validity of the 
remaining section or portions of the Ordinance or part thereof.  The City Council declares that it 
would have independently adopted the remaining provisions, sections, subsections, paragraphs, 
sentences, clauses, phrases, or words of this Ordinance irrespective of the fact that any one or more 
provisions, sections, subsections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, phrases, or words may be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 



 
 

 
Ordinance No. 1180-21 
Density Bonus Update Ordinance   3 
 

SECTION 3:  The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to environmental review 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 
15305 (Minor Alterations to Land Use Limitations), 15060(c)(2), 15061(b)(3) and 15378 because 
the Ordinance involves general policy and procedures concerning minor alterations to land use 
limitations and existing uses within certain zones, and it can be seen with certainty that the 
Ordinance has no possibility of a significant effect on the environment. 
 
SECTION 4:  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Ordinance and to its 
approval by the Mayor and shall cause the same to be published according to law. 
 
 
 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ______, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
 
  



Ordinance No. 1180-21 
Density Bonus Update Ordinance 4 

ATTEST: 

State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale ) 

I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council duly introduced the foregoing Ordinance No. 1180-21 at its regular meeting held on the 
___ day of ___, 2021, and duly approved and adopted said ordinance at its regular meeting held 
on the ___ day of ___, 2021, by the following roll call vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
Pat Kearny, Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman 
Bernadette Suarez 
Sirley Cuevas 

______________________________ ______________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk  Date 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 



11


	21-04-19 reg.agn
	01 - GFOA Certificate
	02. Reading of Ord
	03. PRSSC Fireworks Stand Location
	04. Cable TV Consultant Constract
	05. Quarterly Investment Report
	06. Warrants
	07. 21-04-05 reg.min
	08. SBWIB Appointment
	09. Citywide IT Contract
	Bericom IT & Design Proposal 3_24_24.pdf
	RFP  IT Services 2_2021.pdf
	APPENDICES
	4. Security
	6. End User Training
	7. Onsite Support
	8. Help Desk Support



	10. Amending LMC - Illegal Fireworks Violations
	11. Council Attendance

	Button1: 


